
CORPORATE REPORT  

NO: R093 COUNCIL DATE: May 8, 2017 

REGULAR COUNCIL 

TO: Mayor & Council DATE: May 5, 2017 

FROM: General Manager, Parks, Recreation & Culture FILE: 6140-20/P 

SUBJECT: Naming of the Plaza – “Civic Plaza” 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Parks, Recreation & Culture Department recommends to Council that: 

1. This report be received for information; and

2. The City Hall Plaza be formally named “Civic Plaza”.

INTENT 

The intent of this report is to gain Council approval for the proposed name “Civic Plaza” 
associated with the plaza located adjacent to City Hall, in order to facilitate the marketing of the 
plaza to residents and visitors. 

BACKGROUND 

A city-owned and managed plaza is located on the south side of City Hall, between 103 Avenue, 
the City Centre Library and the new Century Group building, map attached as Appendix “I”.  
Constructed in 2013 as part of the City Hall development; the plaza is an urban public park space.  
It features a hard surface appropriate for hosting small to medium-scale special events such as 
Party for the Planet, Tree Lighting Festival, food truck festivals, community fund raising events, 
and other community activations.   The plaza also contains water features that are activated in the 
warmer months as well as a number of light features that enhance the water fountains and colour 
the space in the evenings.  The Take Five Café provides tables on the Plaza for patrons to enjoy 
outdoor shaded areas in the summer months. 

The east border of the plaza is a lane utilized to access the underground parking, and which will 
ultimately provide access to the Century Group mixed use building. This lane has been referenced 
by its working title as “Market Street” since the opening of City Hall. However, it will officially 
remain unnamed, as per all typical laneways within the City.  The unofficial lane name will be 
“Civic Plaza Lane”.  This name can be used by event organizers and 3 Civic Plaza building for 
reference purposes.  The City Centre plan calls for “Civic Plaza” to ultimately extend further 
south, through to Central City as lands to the south redevelop. 
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POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 

The City’s Policy “Naming of Parks and Facilities” (attached as Appendix “II) includes the 
following criteria for City-scale, destination parks and facilities: 

“City parks and amenities tend to be used by a great number of people and whenever possible 
should bear names, which identify their general location or key site features.” 

DISCUSSION 

The plaza has been designed to create a community gathering location for special events and to 
create ongoing “place making” opportunities adjacent to City Hall and the Library. The City 
Centre plan anticipates a contiguous plaza and pedestrian friendly corridor that will connect City 
Hall to the Central City Tower. 

By formally adopting the proposed name “Civic Plaza” Council will enable more effective 
marketing of the site for important community celebrations. 

SUSTAINABILITY CONSIDERATIONS 

The proposed name changes support the Sustainability Charter by helping to create a universally 
accessible, vibrant community gathering space that supports inclusive participation in recreation 
and cultural celebrations, with the following Desired Outcomes and Strategic Directions: 

• Inclusion DO3: Residents have opportunities to build social connections with people from
different backgrounds.

• Inclusion SD19: Support place-making opportunities at the neighbourhood level and the
creation of community gathering spaces.

• Built Environment DO3: The City Centre is a dynamic, attractive and complete
metrop0litan area and important international destination, and is one of North America’s
most livable and desirable downtowns.

• Built Environment DO15: All new buildings, public spaces and outdoor spaces are
welcoming, safe and universally accessible.

• Built Environments SD9: Design public spaces to enable flexible uses.
Health and Wellness DO6: Residents participate in a wide range of recreation and leisure
opportunities.

CONCLUSION 

Based on the above discussion, it is recommended that Council approve the naming of the plaza 
currently adjacent to City Hall as “Civic Plaza”. 

Laurie Cavan 
General Manager,  
Parks, Recreation & Culture 
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APPENDIX “I” 

Aerial Photo of City Hall Plaza 
 
 

 
 



 
 

APPENDIX “II”  
Parks and Facilities Naming Policy 

 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 


